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Receipt No.7009 1680 0000 7676 4926

C T Corporation System

Stepan Company

208 South LaSalle St., Suite §14
Chicago, lllinois 60604

Consent Agreement and Final Order In the Matter of
Stepan Company. Docket No. FIFRA-05-2013-0015

To Whom It May Concern:

Enclosed pleased find a copy of a fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order, in
resolution of the above case. This document was filed on July 16, 2013 with the Regional

Hearing Clerk.

The civil penalty in the amount of $20,800 is to be paid in the manner described in paragraphs 63
through 66. Please be certain that the docket number 1s written on both the transmittal letter and

on the check. Payment is due by July 15, 2013 (within 30 calendar days of the filing date).

Thank you for your cooperation in resolving this matter.

Sincerely,

#(' Terence Bonace
Pesticides and Toxics Compliance Section

Enclosures
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION 5

In the Matter of: g Docket No. FIFRA-05‘2013'0015
Stepan Company ) Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty
Northfield, Illinois ) Under Section 14(a) of the Federal

) Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide

) Act, 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a)

) . —

> AEGE [V E

Respondent. ) }2* Tk :
) Yy L))

JUL 16 2013
Consent Agreement and Final Order REGIONAL HEARING CLERK
U.S. ENVIRONMENTA
Preliminary Statement PROTECTION AGE

1. This is an administrative action commenced and concluded under Section 14(a) of the
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a), and Sections
22.13(b) and 22.18(b)(2) and (3) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of
Permits (Consolidated Rules) as codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22.

2. The Complainant is the Director of the Land and Chemicals Division,

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5.

3. Respondent is Stepan Company (Stepan), a corporation doing business Illinois.

4. Where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of action before the filing of a
complaint, the administrative action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by the
issuance of a consent agreement and final order (CAFO). 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b).

5. The parties agree that settling this action without the filing of a complaint or the

adjudication of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest.



6.  Respondent consents 1o the assessment of the Civil'penalty specified in this
CAFO, and to the terms of this CAFO.

Jurisdiction and Waiver of Right to Hearing

7 Respoﬁdf:nt admits the jurisdictional allegations in this CAFO and neither admits -
. nor denies the factual allegiations‘ in this CAFO. |
8. Respondent waives its right to request a heaﬁng as provided at 40 C.F.R.
§ 22.15(c), any right to contest the—allegations in this CAFO, and its right to appeal this
CAFO. |
| 9. Respondent certifies that it is coroplying with FIFRA, 7 US.C. §§ 136 to 136y.

Statutorv and Regulatory Backsround -

10. Section 3(0)(1 ) C), 7U.S.C. § 136a(c)(1)(C), states that e_ach applic;ant for
registration of a pesticide shall file with the Adrlninjstrator a statement which includes a
complete copy of the labeling of the pesticides, a statemient of all claims to be made for it, and
any directions for its use.

t1. Section 12(2)(1)(E) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(1)(E), states that it is unlawful
for any pe'fson to distribute or sell to any person any pésticide which is adulterated or
misbranded.

12, Section 2(c)(]) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(c)(1), defines a pesticide as
“adulterated” if its strength or,purity falls below thg professed standard of quality as expressed
on its labe]ing under whjch it is sold.

13. 40 C.F.R. § 152.132 states that a registrant may distribute or sell his registered
product under another person’s name a;ﬁd address instead of (or in addition to) his own. The

product is referred to as a “distributor product.”



14, 40 CEFR. § 152.132 states that supplemental distribution 1s permitted upon
notification to the Agency if all of the following conditions are met: (a) The registrant has
submitted to the Agency for each distributor product a statement signed by both the registrant
and the distributor listing the names and addresses of the registrant and the distributor, the
distributor’s company number, the additional brand name(s) to be used, and the registration
number of the registered product, (b) The distributor product 1s produced, packaged and
labeled in a registered establishment operated by the same producer who produces, packages,
and labels the registered product, (c) The distributor product is not repackaged (remains in
the producer’s unopened containers), (d) The label of the distributor product is the same as
" that of the registered product, except that the product name of the distributor product may be
different, the name and address of the distributor may appear instead of that of the registrant,
the registration number of the registered product must be followed by a dash, followed by the
distributor’s company number, the establishment number must be that of the final
establishment at which the product was produced,. and specific claims may be deleted,
provided that no other changes are necessary, and (e) Voluntary cancellation of a product
applies to the registered product and all distributor products distributed or sold under that
registration number.

[5. 40 C.F.R. §152.132 also specifies that a distributor is considered an agent of the
registrant for all intents and purposes under FIFRA, and both the registrant and the distributor
may be held liable for violations pertaining to the distributor product.

16. The term “distribute or sell,” as defined m Section 2(gg) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §
136(gg), means “to distribute, sell, offer for sale, hold for distribution, hold for sale, hold for

shipment, ship, deliver for shipment, release for shipment, or receive and (having so received)



deliver or offer to deliver.” 7 U.S.C. § 136(gg).

17. The.teml “person,” as defined in Section 2(s) of FIFRA, 7US.C. .§ 136(s) means
| “any individual, partnership, association, corporation, or any organized group of persons
~ whether incorporated or not.” |

18. A “pest,” as defined in Section 2(t) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(t), means any
insect, rodent; nematode, fungus, weed, or any other form of terrestrial of aguatic ﬁ]ant or
animal life or virus, bacteria, or other micro~0rganism Whjéh the Administrator of EPA
declares to be a pest under Section 25(c)(1) of FIFRA.

19. A “pesticide,”_ as defined in Section 2(u} of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(u) means,
among other things, any substance or mixture of substances intended for preveﬁting, |
destroying, repelling, or mifigating any pest. |

20. A “registrant,” as defined in Section 2(y) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136{u) méans, a
person who has registered any product pursuant to the provisions of FIFRA.

21. The Administrator of EPA may assess a civil penalty against any registrant,
Icomrnercial appli;:ator, wholesaler, dealer, retailer, other distributor who violates Vany
provision of FIFRA of ﬁp to $6,500 for each offense that occurred after March 15, 2004
through January 12, 2009 and of up to $7,500 for each offense that occuﬁed after Januqry 12,

2009, pufsuant to Section 14(a)(1) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a)(1), and 40 CF.R. Part 19,

Factual Allegations and Alleged Violations

22. Respondent, Stepan, is a “person” as defiried at Section 2(s) of FIFRA, 7 UsC.
§ 136(s).
23. Respondent, Stepan, is a “registrant” as defined at Section 2(y) of FIFRA,

7U.8.C. § 136(y).



24. At all times relevant to the Complaint, Stepan owned or operated a place of
business focated at 22 W. Frontage Road, Northfield, Illinois 60093.

25. Onor about March 13, 1981, EPA approved the registration for Stepan’s
pesticide product, CB 1.6 (D & F) Detergent/Disinfectant.

26. EPA assigned EPA Registration Number (EPA Reg. No.) 1839-101 to Stepan’s
pesticide product, CD.1.6 (D & F) Detergent/Disinfectant.

27. On or about March 26, 2003, Stepan and Biospan Technologies Incorporated
(Bioépan), located at 6540 Meyer Drive, Washington, Missouri, submitted a Notice of
Supplemental Registration of Distributor to EPA for the pesticide product, CD 1.6 (D & F)
Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101.

28. The Notice of Supplemental Registration of Distributor listed Biospan as the
distributor of Stepan’s pesticide product, CD 1.6 (D & F) Detergent/Disinfectant.

29, The Notice of Supplemental Registration of Distributor listed the distributor
product name as VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant.

30. The EPA assigned the distributor product VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant,
EPA Reg. No.1839-101-67813.

31. VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg No. 1839-101-67813,1s a
“pesticide” as that term is defined in Section 2(u) of FIFRA, 7 U.8.C. § 136(u).

32. The distributor, Biospan, is an agent of the registrant, Stepan, for all intents and
purposes under 40 C.F.R. § 152.132 and FIFRA with respect té its distributor product
VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101-67813.

33. On or about December 10, 2008, an inspector employed by the Missouri

Department of Agriculture and authorized to conduct inspections under FIFRA conducted an



inspeqtion at Biospan’s place of business.
34. During the December 10, 2008 inspecﬁon, the inspector collcctéd a physical
sample of the pesticide product, VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-
101-67813, from.pesticides that Biospan was holding for distribution or sale.
35. On or about December 22, 2008, the University of lowa Hygieﬁic Laboratory
(Hygienic Laboratory), located at 102 Oakdalé Campus, lowa City, fowa, received the
_physical sample of VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. I;Io. 1839-1 01-67813
collected during the December 10, 2008 inspection.
36. Onor about December 30, 2008, Hygienic Laboratory analyzed the physical
sample of VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101-67813, that was
. coﬂecfed on Decembér 10, 2008.

37. The December 30, 2008 analysis showed that the average poncéntration of the
quaternary ammonium chlorides in the saﬁpla of VetraSept Detergent}fDisinfectaﬁt, EPA
Reg. No. 1839-101-67813, was 1.07%. -

38. Om or about February 2, 2009, Hygienic Laboratory analyzed the physical
sample of VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101-67813, that was
collected on December 10, 2008. |

39. The February 2, 2009 analysis showed that the average conceﬁtraiion of the
quaternary ammonium chlorides in the sample of VetraSept Detergem/[)isinfectant, EPA
Reg. No. 1839-101-67813, was 1.04%,

40. The label for VetraSepi Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101-
67813, states that the pesticide product contains 1 .60% quaternary ammonium compounds.

4}. On or about December 10, 2008, Biospan was holding VetraSept



Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101-67813, for distribution or sale at its place
of business. |

42. On or about September 29, 2008, Biospan distributed or sold VetraSept
Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101-67813, to the St. Louis Zoo located in St
Louis, Missouri. |

43. On or about November 13, 2008, Biospan distributed or sold VetraSept
Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101-67813, to the St. Louis Zoo loce.lted in St.
Louis, Missouri. |

44. On or about Janvary 12, 2009, Biospan distributed or sold VetraSept
Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101:67813, to the St. Louis Zoo located in St,
Louis, Missouri. |

Count 1

45, Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 44 of this CAFO, as if set forth
in this parégraph.

46. On December 10, 2008, Biospan distributed or sold a pesticide, VetraSept
Detergent/Disinfectﬁnt, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101-67813, that was adlﬂteréted, as that term is
defined by Sections 2(c)1) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(c)(1), by holding the distributor
product for distribution or sale at its facility.

47. Biospan’sl distribution or sale of VetraSept Detergent/l)isinfectau"t, EPA Reg.
No. 1839-101-67813, constitutes an uﬁléwful act pursuant to Section 12(a}{1}(E) of FIFRA,
7U.8.C. § 136j(2}(1)(E).

48. Biospan’s violation of Section 12(a)(1)(E) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j'{a)(1)(E)

subjects registrant, Stepan, to the issvance of an Administrative Complaint assessing a civil



penalty under Section 14(a) of the FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §1362(a).

49, Compléinant incorporates paragraphs 1 throﬁgh 4l4‘ of this CAFO, as if sef forth
in this paragraph. | 7

50. On or about September 29, 2008, Biospan distributed or sold a’pesticide,
VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101-67813, to the St. Louis Zoo that
was adulterated, as that term is defined by Secﬁons 2(c)(1) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(c)(1).

51. Biospan’s distributioﬁ or sﬂe of VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg.
No. 1839-101-67813, constitutes an unlawful act pursuant to Section 12(a){1)(E) of FIFRA,
7U.S.C. § 136j(a)(1)(E).

| 5. Biospaﬁ’s violation of Section 12(;1)(1)(5) of FIFRA, TUSLC § lBGj(ﬁ)(l)(E)
subjects registrant, Stepan, to the issuance of an Administrative Complaint assessing a civil
penalty under Section 14{a) of the FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §13617(a).‘
Count 3

53. . Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 44 of this CAFQ, as if set forth
| n tiﬁs paragraph.

54, On or about November 13, 2008, Biospan distributed or sold a pestiqide,l
VetraSept Detergent/ﬂisinfectant, EP-;A Reg. No. 1839-101-67813, to the St. Louis Zoo that
was adulterated, as that term is defined by Sections 2(c)(1) of FIFRA, 7 [iS.C. § 136(c)(1).

55.  Biospan’s distribution or sale of VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg.
No. 1839-101-67813, constitutes an unlawful act pursuant to Section 12(a)(1}E) of FIFRA,
TU.S.C. § 136§(a)(1)(E).

56. Biospan’s violation of Section 12¢a)(1)(E) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(1XE)



subjects registrant, Stepan, to the issuance of an Administrative Complaint assessing a civil
penalty under Section 14(a} of the FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §136/(a).
Count 4

57. Complainant incorporates paragraphs 1 through 44 of this CAFO, as if set forth
in this paragraph.

38. On or about January 12, 2009, Biospan distributed or sold a pesticide, VetraSept
Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg. No. 1839-101-67813, to the St. Louis Zoo that was
adulterated, as that term 1s defined by Sections 2(c)(1) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(c)X1).

39. Biospan’s distribution or sale of VetraSept Detergent/Disinfectant, EPA Reg.
No. 1839-101-67813, constitutes an unlawful act pursuant to Section 12(a)(1 }E) (;f FIFRA,
7 U.S.C. § 136)(a)1)XE).

60. Biospan’s violation of Section 12(a)(1)(E) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136j(a)(1)}(E)
subjects registrant, Stepan, to the issuance of an Administrative Complaint assessing a civil
penalty under Section 14(a) of the FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §136/(a).

Civil Penalty And Other Relief

61. Section 14(a)(4) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. §136/(4), requires the Administrator to
consider the size of the business of the person charged, the effect on the person's ability to
continue in business, and the gravity of the violation, when assessing an administrative
penalty under FIFRA.

62.  Based on an evaluation of the facts alleged in this complaint, the factors in
Section 14(a)(4) of FIFRA and EPA’s Enforcement Response Policy for the Federal
Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, dated December 2009, Complainant has

determined the appropriate penalty to settle this action is $20,800.



63.  Within 30 days after the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent musi pay a
$20,800 crvil penalty for the FIFRA VIOIatlons Respondent must pay the penaliy by electronic
funds transfer, payable to the “Treasurer, United States of Amenca, and sent to:

Federal Reserve Bank of New York

ABA No. 021030004

Account No. 68010727

SWIFT address FRNYUS33

33 Liberty Street . _

New York, New York 10045

Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read:

"D 68010727 Environmental Protection Agency”
In the comment or description ﬁeid of the electronic funds transfer, state Stepan Company, and
the docket mimber of this CAFO.

64. This civil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.

65. If Respondent does not pay the civil penalty in a timely manner, EPA may refer the
matter to the Attorney General who will recover such amount by action in the appropriate United
States district court under Section 14(a)(5) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a)(5). The validity,

‘amount and appropriateness of the civil penalty are not reviewable in a collection action.

66. Pursuantto 31 CF.R. § 901.9, Reépondent must pay the following on any
amount overdue under this CAFO. Interest will accrue on any amount overdue from the date
payment was due at a rate established by the Secretary of the Trczisury, Respondent must
pay a $15 bandling charge each month thaf any portion of the penalty is more than 30 days
past due. In addition, Respondent must pay a 6 percent per year penalty on any principal
amount 90 days past due.

Ceneral Provisions

67. This CAFO resolves only Respondent’s liébility for federal civil penalties for the

violations and facts alleged in this CAFO.

16



68. This CAFO does not affect the right of EPA or the United States to pursue
appropriate injunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of law.

69. This CAFO does not affect Respondent’s responsibility to comply with FIFRA and
other applicable federal, state, and local laws.

70. This CAFQ is a “final order™ for purposes of EPA’s Enforcement Response Policy
for FIFRA.

71. The terms of this C’AFO bind Respondent, its successors, and assigns.

72. Each person signing this agreement certifies that he or she has the authority to sign
for the party whom he or she represents and to bind that party to its terms.

73. Bach party agrees to bear its own costs and aftorney’s fees, in this action.

74. This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement between the parties.

11



In the Matter of:
Stepan Company

Stepan Company, Respondent

Date *

n V.V ene% :
Vice Presidentééind General Manager, Surfactants
Stepan Company -
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In the Matter of:
Stepan Company

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Complainant

7[u]2212 ey

Date I{/Iargw Guerriero
Director
L.and and Chemicals Division

13



In the Matter of:
- Stepan Companv
Docket No.
FIFRA-05-2013-0015

Final Order
This Consent Agreement and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become
effective immediately upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Final Order concludes

this proceeding pursuant to 40 CF.R. §§ 22.18 and 22.31. IT IS SO ORDERED.

= AT

Fed D =) 5
Date , Susan Hedman
Regional Administrator
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 5

aFGEIVE(
O JuL 16208

REGIONAL HEARING CLERK
U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION AGEN
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that the original signed copy of the Consent Agreement and Final Order in
resolution of the civil administrative action involving Stepan Company, was filed on July 16,
2013 with the Regional Hearing Clerk (E-19J), U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5,
77 West Jackson Boulevard, Chicago, Illinois, 60604, and that I mailed by Certified Mail, Receipt
No.7009 1680 0000 7676 4926, a copy of the original to the Respondents:

C T Corporation System

Stepan Company

208 South LaSalle St., Suite 814
Chicago, Illinois 60604

and forwarded copies (intra-Agency) to:

Ann Coyle, Regional Judicial Officer, ORC/C-14]J
Nidhi O’Meara, Regional Judicial Officer, ORC/C-14J
Eric Volck, Cincinnati Finance/MWD

Frederick Brown

Pesticides and Toxics Compliance Section
U.S. EPA - Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, Illinois 60604

Docket No. FIFRA—OS-%Q}S-OD}E

ﬁyﬁlr@'@ EIVEN

JUL 16 2013

~ CLERK

JONAL HEARING CLER
REC S, ENVIRONMENT
PROTECTION AGER



